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Avenue, Rockville, MD 20852. The first 
page of any filing should include the 
docket number P–2188–295. Comments 
emailed to Commission staff are not 
considered part of the Commission 
record. 

The Commission’s Rules of Practice 
and Procedure require all intervenors 
filing documents with the Commission 
to serve a copy of that document on 
each person whose name appears on the 
official service list for the project. 
Further, if an intervenor files comments 
or documents with the Commission 
relating to the merits of an issue that 
may affect the responsibilities of a 
particular resource agency, they must 
also serve a copy of the document on 
that resource agency. 

l. Description of Request: The licensee 
proposes to replace the Hauser 
Development’s Units 3 and 6 S. Morgan 
Smith horizontal Francis turbines with 
new Mavel vertical Z Kaplan turbines. 
The licensee would also replace the 
generators for Units 3 and 6. The 
proposed upgrade would result in a 0.96 
MW increase in the authorized installed 
capacity of the development, to 20.28 
MW, and would result in a decrease to 
the hydraulic capacity of the 
development of 5.92%, from 4,560 cubic 
feet per second (cfs) to 4,290 cfs. The 
total authorized installed capacity for 
the entire project would increase from 
319.05 MW to 320.01 MW. The licensee 
states that the upgrades would not cause 
any change in the operation of the 
project or have quantifiable 
environmental effects, and only a minor 
effect on hydraulic flows. All 
construction would occur within the 
footprint of the powerhouse and there 
would be no land disturbance. 

m. Locations of the Application: This 
filing may be viewed on the 
Commission’s website at http://
www.ferc.gov using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. 
Enter the docket number excluding the 
last three digits in the docket number 
field to access the document. You may 
also register online at http://
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
esubscription.asp to be notified via 
email of new filings and issuances 
related to this or other pending projects. 
For assistance, call 1–866–208–3676 or 
email FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, for 
TTY, call (202) 502–8659. Agencies may 
obtain copies of the application directly 
from the applicant. 

n. Individuals desiring to be included 
on the Commission’s mailing list should 
so indicate by writing to the Secretary 
of the Commission. 

o. Comments, Protests, or Motions to 
Intervene: Anyone may submit 
comments, a protest, or a motion to 
intervene in accordance with the 

requirements of Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 18 CFR 385.210, .211, .214, 
respectively. In determining the 
appropriate action to take, the 
Commission will consider all protests or 
other comments filed, but only those 
who file a motion to intervene in 
accordance with the Commission’s 
Rules may become a party to the 
proceeding. Any comments, protests, or 
motions to intervene must be received 
on or before the specified comment date 
for the particular application. 

p. Filing and Service of Documents: 
Any filing must (1) bear in all capital 
letters the title ‘‘COMMENTS’’, 
‘‘PROTEST’’, or ‘‘MOTION TO 
INTERVENE’’ as applicable; (2) set forth 
in the heading the name of the applicant 
and the project number of the 
application to which the filing 
responds; (3) furnish the name, address, 
and telephone number of the person 
commenting, protesting or intervening; 
and (4) otherwise comply with the 
requirements of 18 CFR 385.2001 
through 385.2005. All comments, 
motions to intervene, or protests must 
set forth their evidentiary basis. Any 
filing made by an intervenor must be 
accompanied by proof of service on all 
persons listed in the service list 
prepared by the Commission in this 
proceeding, in accordance with 18 CFR 
385.2010. 

q. The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, community organizations, 
Tribal members, and others access 
publicly available information and 
navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 
public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

Dated: June 26, 2025. 
Carlos D. Clay, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–12262 Filed 6–30–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

[Docket No. 25–1] 

Phillip Marciano LLC, Complainant v. 
US Cargo Services Inc., Respondent; 
Notice of Filing of Complaint and 
Assignment 

Served: June 26, 2025. 
Notice is given that a complaint has 

been filed with the Federal Maritime 
Commission (the ‘‘Commission’’) by 

Phillip Marciano LLC (the 
‘‘Complainant’’) against US Cargo 
Services Inc. (the ‘‘Respondent’’). 
Complainant states that the Commission 
has subject-matter jurisdiction over the 
complaint pursuant to the Shipping Act 
of 1984, as amended, 46 U.S.C. 40101 et 
seq., and personal jurisdiction over 
Respondent as a common carrier, as this 
term is defined in 46 U.S.C. 40102. 

Complainant Phillip Marciano LLC is 
a limited liability company existing 
under the laws of the State of New York 
with its principal place of business 
located in New York, New York. 

Complainant identifies Respondent 
US Cargo Services Inc. as a corporation 
with its principal place of business 
located in Richmond, Texas. 

Complainant alleges that Respondent 
violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c) and (d) and 
46 CFR 545.5. Complainant alleges these 
violations arose from a failure to deliver 
containers as required under the bills of 
lading, pending payment of charges 
unrelated to the shipments, and other 
acts or omissions by Respondent. 

An answer to the complaint must be 
filed with the Commission within 25 
days after the date of service. 

The full text of the complaint can be 
found in the Commission’s electronic 
Reading Room at https://www2.fmc.gov/ 
readingroom/proceeding/25-11/. This 
proceeding has been assigned to the 
Office of Administrative Law Judges. 
The initial decision of the presiding 
judge shall be issued by June 26, 2026, 
and the final decision of the 
Commission shall be issued by January 
11, 2027. 

David Eng, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–12246 Filed 6–30–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

[FMC–2024–0018; FMC–2024–0019; FMC– 
2024–0020; FMC–2024–0021] 

Renewal of Agency Information 
Collection Activities: Submission for 
OMB Review; Comment Requested; 
Marine Terminal Operators; Service 
Contracts, Non-Vessel Operating 
Common Carriers 

AGENCY: Federal Maritime Commission. 
ACTION: Notice and request for comment. 

SUMMARY: The Federal Maritime 
Commission (Commission) is giving 
public notice that the agency has 
submitted the continuing information 
collections listed below in this notice to 
the Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) for approval of revisions of 
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existing information collections related 
to marine terminal operator schedules, 
service contracts, non-vessel-operating 
common carrier (NVOCC) service 
arrangements and negotiated rate 
agreements. The public is invited to 
comment on these information 
collections pursuant to the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995. 
DATES: Written comments must be 
submitted on or before July 31, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Comments should be 
submitted to: (1) the Commission 
through the Federal eRulemaking Portal 
at www.regulations.gov (dockets FMC– 
2024–0018; FMC–2024–0019; FMC– 
2024–0020; FMC–2024–0021) and (2) 
also sent to the Office of Management 
and Budget’s Office of Information and 
Regulatory Affairs through the portal at 
https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. Find this particular 
information collection at Reginfo.gov by 
selecting ‘‘Currently under Review— 
Open for Public Comments’’ or by using 
the search function. If your material 
cannot be submitted to the addresses 
above, contact the person in the FOR 
FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT section of 
this document for alternate instructions. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
additional information, please contact 
Amy Strauss, (202) 523–5793, 
TradeAnalysis@fmc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

The Commission invites the general 
public and other Federal agencies to 
comment on any aspect of the 
continuing information collections 
listed in this notice, as required by the 
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (44 
U.S.C. 3501 et seq.). We are particularly 
interested in receiving comments on: (1) 
the necessity and utility of the proposed 
information collections for the proper 
performance of the agency’s functions; 
(2) the accuracy of the estimated 
burden; (3) ways to enhance the quality, 
utility, and clarity of the information to 
be collected; and (4) the use of 
automated collection techniques or 
other forms of information technology to 
minimize the information collection 
burden. 

Comments submitted in response to 
this notice will be included or 
summarized in our request for OMB 
approval of the relevant information 
collection. All comments are part of the 
public record and subject to disclosure. 
Please do not include any confidential 
or inappropriate material in your 
comments. 

Previous Request for Comments 
On November 20, 2024, the 

Commission published a notice and 
request for comment in the Federal 

Register (89 FR 91749) regarding the 
agency’s request for approval from OMB 
for information collections as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 
1995. During the 60-day period, the 
Commission received no comments. 

Information Collection Open for 
Comment 

I. 

Title: 46 CFR Part 525—Marine 
Terminal Operator Schedules and 
Related Form FMC–1. 

OMB Approval Number: 3072–0061 
(Expires July 31, 2025). 

Abstract: Section 40501(f) of Title 46 
of the United States Code provides 
marine terminal operators (MTOs) with 
the option of making their schedules of 
rates, regulations, and practices 
available to the public subject to 46 
U.S.C. 41102(c). MTOs must maintain a 
complete set of all of their terminal 
schedules and shall promptly make 
them available to the Commission upon 
request. Each MTO is required to file 
Form FMC–1 with the Bureau of Trade 
Analysis providing its organization 
name, organization number, home office 
address, name and telephone number of 
the firm’s representative, the location of 
its terminal schedule(s), and the 
publisher, if any, used to maintain its 
terminal schedule. The Commission 
publishes a list on its website of the 
location of any terminal schedule made 
available to the public. 

Type of Review: Revision of a 
currently approved collection. 

Needs and Uses: The Commission 
uses the information filed by these 
parties to monitor the activities of these 
entities and to meet its responsibilities 
with regard to identifying and 
preventing unreasonable preference or 
prejudice and unjust discrimination 
pursuant to 46 U.S.C. 41102. 
Additionally, the Commission uses the 
information filed by these parties to 
monitor the activities of these entities 
and to meet its responsibilities with 
regard to identifying and preventing 
unreasonable discrimination, preference 
or advantage (or disadvantage) or 
unreasonable refusal to deal pursuant to 
46 U.S.C. 41106. 

Frequency: Submission of new FMC– 
1 forms or updates to existing forms are 
not assigned a specific time frame by the 
Commission; they are submitted as 
circumstances warrant. However, it is 
unlikely that any single entity would 
need to provide information more than 
once in a calendar year. 

Type of Respondents: Marine 
Terminal Operators. 

Number of Annual Respondents: 
There are currently 202 MTOs registered 

with the Commission. One hundred and 
forty-six (146) of those entities make 
their schedules available to the public. 
Based on previous years, the 
Commission estimates that 
approximately 20 MTOs will file a new 
FMC–1 or update an existing FMC–1. 
MTOs are not required to inform the 
Commission when they update a marine 
terminal schedule outside of publishing 
its location; however, the Commission 
estimates that 10 MTOs would update 
their schedules in a given year. 

Estimated Time per Response: The 
time per response for completing Form 
FMC–1 averages 0.5 person hours, and 
approximately 5 person-hours for 
updating an existing MTO schedule. 

Total Annual Burden: The 
Commission estimates the total person- 
hour burden at 60 person-hours per 
year. 

II. 

Title: 46 CFR Part 530—Service 
Contracts. 

OMB Approval Number: 3072–0065 
(Expires July 31, 2025). 

Abstract: Section 40502 of Title 46 of 
the United States Code requires ocean 
common carriers and agreements 
between or among such carriers to file 
their service contracts confidentially 
with the Commission. The 
Commission’s rules governing the filing 
of service contracts are set forth at 46 
CFR part 530. 

Type of Review: Revision of a 
currently approved collection. 

Needs and Uses: The Commission 
monitors service contract filings to 
ensure compliance with 46 U.S.C. 
subtitle IV. 

Frequency: Frequency of filings is 
determined by the ocean common 
carrier and its customers. When parties 
enter into a service contract or amend 
the contract, the service contract or 
amendment must be filed with the 
Commission. 

Type of Respondents: Ocean common 
carriers or their duly appointed agents 
are required to file service contracts and 
amendments with the Commission. 

Number of Annual Respondents: The 
Commission estimates an annual 
respondent universe of 84 ocean 
common carriers. During 2024, ocean 
common carriers filed 370,918 original 
service contracts, and 835,092 service 
contract amendments. 

Estimated Time per Response: The 
Commission estimates that the time per 
response ranges from 0.0166 to 0.1 
person-hours for reporting and 
recordkeeping requirements contained 
in the regulations, averaging 119 hours 
per response for audit requirements, and 
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0.1 person-hours for completing Form 
FMC–83. 

Total Annual Burden: The 
Commission estimates the total annual 
person-hour burden at 34,285.48 
person-hours. 

III. 

Title: 46 CFR Part 531—NVOCC 
Service Arrangements. 

OMB Approval Number: 3072–0070 
(Expires July 31, 2025). 

Abstract: 46 CFR part 531 allows 
NVOCCs and shippers’ associations 
with NVOCC members to act as shipper 
parties in NVOCC Service Arrangements 
(NSAs), and to be exempt from certain 
tariff publication requirements of 46 
U.S.C. subtitle IV provided the NVOCC 
posts a prominent notice in its rules 
tariff invoking the NSA exemption and 
provides electronic access to its rules 
tariff to the public free of charge. This 
information collection corresponds to 
the requirements to include the NSA 
exemption in the tariff, recordkeeping 
requirements, and the requirement to 
make the tariff publicly available free of 
charge. 

Type of Review: Revision of a 
currently approved collection. 

Needs and Uses: The Commission 
uses NSAs and associated data for 
monitoring and investigatory purposes 
and, in its proceedings, to adjudicate 
related issues raised by private parties. 

Frequency: NVOCCs that opt to enter 
into an NSA in lieu of publishing tariff 
rate(s) must post a notice in its rules 
tariff invoking the NSA exemption. 

Type of Respondents: Parties that 
enter into NSAs are NVOCCs and 
shippers’ associations with NVOCC 
members. 

Number of Annual Respondents: Of 
the total respondent universe of 
approximately 8,700 active NVOCCs, 
the Commission estimates that 325 
NVOCCs per year will need to add a 
prominent notice to their electronically 
published rules tariff indicating the 
intention to invoke the NSA exemption. 
The Commission estimates that 
approximately 1,500 NVOCCs in total 
have invoked this exemption and would 
therefore be subject to the recordkeeping 
requirements. 

Estimated Time per Response: The 
time per response is estimated to be 15 
minutes to add a tariff rule invoking the 
NSA exemption, and 15 minutes for 
recordkeeping requirements. 

Total Annual Burden: Total annual 
burden is estimated to be 456 person- 
hours. 

IV. 

Title: 46 CFR Part 532—NVOCC 
Negotiated Rate Arrangements. 

OMB Approval Number: 3072–0071 
(Expires July 31, 2025). 

Abstract: Section 40103 of Title 46 of 
the United States Code authorizes the 
Commission to exempt by order or 
regulation ‘‘any class of agreements 
between persons subject to [46 U.S.C. 
subtitle IV, Part A] or any specified 
activity of those persons from any 
requirement of [46 U.S.C. subtitle IV, 
Part A] if the Commission finds that the 
exemption will not result in substantial 
reduction in competition or be 
detrimental to commerce.’’ The 
Commission may attach conditions to 
any exemption and may, by order, 
revoke an exemption. In 46 CFR part 
532, the Commission exempted 
NVOCCs from the tariff rate publication 
requirements of Part 520 and allowed an 
NVOCC to enter into an NVOCC 
Negotiated Rate Arrangement (NRA) in 
lieu of publishing its tariff rate(s), 
provided the NVOCC posts a prominent 
notice in its rules tariff invoking the 
NRA exemption and provides electronic 
access to its rules tariff to the public free 
of charge. This information collection 
corresponds to the rules tariff prominent 
notice and the requirement to make its 
rules tariff publicly available free of 
charge. 

Type of Review: Revision of a 
currently approved collection. 

Needs and Uses: The Commission 
uses the information filed by an NVOCC 
in its rules tariff to determine whether 
the NVOCC has invoked the exemption 
for a particular shipment or shipments. 
The Commission has used and will 
continue to use the information required 
to be maintained by NVOCCs for 
monitoring and investigatory purposes, 
and, in its proceedings, to adjudicate 
related issues raised by private parties. 

Type of Respondents: Parties that 
enter into NRAs are NVOCCs and 
shippers’ associations with NVOCC 
members. 

Number of Annual Respondents: Of 
the total respondent universe of 
approximately 8,700 active NVOCCs, an 
average of 500 annually over the last 
three years have added a prominent 
notice to its electronically published 
rules tariff indicating the intention to 
invoke the NRA exemption. The 
Commission estimates that a total of 
3,800 NVOCCs now utilize the NRA 
exemption and would then need 
approximately one hour per year for 
recordkeeping requirements. 

Estimated Time per Response: The 
time per response is estimated to be 15 
minutes to add a tariff rule invoking the 
NRA exemption, and one hour for 
recordkeeping requirements. 

Total Annual Burden: Total annual 
burden is estimated to be 3,925 person- 
hours. 

David Eng, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–12287 Filed 6–30–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

Notice of Agreements Filed 

The Commission hereby gives notice 
of the filing of the following agreement 
under the Shipping Act of 1984. 
Interested parties may submit 
comments, relevant information, or 
documents regarding the agreement to 
the Secretary by email at Secretary@
fmc.gov, or by mail, Federal Maritime 
Commission, 800 North Capitol Street, 
Washington, DC 20573. Comments will 
be most helpful to the Commission if 
received within 12 days of the date this 
notice appears in the Federal Register, 
and the Commission requests that 
comments be submitted within 7 days 
on agreements that request expedited 
review. Copies of agreements are 
available through the Commission’s 
website (www.fmc.gov) or by contacting 
the Office of Agreements at (202) 523– 
5793 or tradeanalysis@fmc.gov. 

Agreement No.: 201451–001. 
Agreement Name: APL/MLL MECL– 

EX1 Slot Exchange Agreement. 
Parties: American Presidents Lines, 

LLC; and Maersk Line, Limited. 
Filing Party: Wayne Rohde, Cozen 

O’Connor. 
Synopsis: The Amendment deletes 

Spain, Oman, and the United Arab 
Emirates from the scope of the 
Agreement. 

Proposed Effective Date: 6/25/2025. 
Location: https://www2.fmc.gov/ 

FMC.Agreements.Web/Public/ 
AgreementHistory/88603. 

Dated: June 27, 2025. 
Alanna Beck, 
Federal Register Alternate Liaison Officer. 
[FR Doc. 2025–12274 Filed 6–30–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and 
Mergers of Bank Holding Companies 

The companies listed in this notice 
have applied to the Board for approval, 
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company 
Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 et seq.) 
(BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR part 
225), and all other applicable statutes 
and regulations to become a bank 
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